
 
 
 

 
City of Westminster 
 

  
 

Council Agenda 
 

Title: 
 

 Council Meeting 

   

Meeting Date: 
 

 Wednesday 28th June, 2023 

   

Time: 
 

 7.00 pm 

   

Venue: 
 

 Westminster Council House, 97-113 Marylebone Road, 
London, NW1 5PT 

   

Members: 
 

 All Councillors are hereby summoned to attend the Meeting 
for the transaction of the business set out. 

    
   

 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 In line with legislation Committee members will attend the 
meeting in person. This meeting will be live streamed 
through the Council’s website.  
 
Limited admission to the public gallery is available from 
6.30pm. Please telephone if you are attending the meeting in 
a wheelchair or have difficulty walking up steps. There is 
wheelchair access via the Sammy Ofer Centre. 
 

    
 If you require any further information, please contact the 

Committee Officer, Janis Best, Committee and Councillor 
Support Manager. 
 
Email: jbest@westminster.gov.uk   Tel: 07971 920521 
Corporate Website: www.westminster.gov.uk 
 
 

 
 

Public Document Pack

http://www.westminster.gov.uk/


 

 

 

1.   APPOINTMENT OF RELIEF CHAIR   

2.   PRESENTATION OF PAST LORD MAYOR'S BADGE AND VOTE 
OF THANKS 

 

 To present the past Lord Mayor’s badge and other insignia and Vote 
of Thanks. 
 

 

3.   MINUTES (Pages 9 - 12) 

 To sign the Minutes of the Meetings of the Council held on 17 May. 
 

 

4.   LORD MAYOR'S COMMUNICATIONS  

 
  1.      The Lord Mayor to report that, on Thursday 18th 

May, she attended the opening of ‘Change 
Please’ coffee shop on Victoria Street.  
 

2.       The Lord Mayor to report that, on Friday 19th May, 
she attended the official opening of St Marylebone 
CE Bridge School. 
 

3.      The Lord Mayor to report that, on Saturday 20th 
May, she attended the ‘Bathing of the Buddha 
Ceremony’ at the London Fo Guang Shan 
Temple. 
 

4.      The Lord Mayor to report that, on Wednesday 24th 
May, she attended the Topping Out ceremony for 
the W1 development on Great Portland Street and 
the Chilean Naval Day Service and Reception at 
The Abbey and the Chilean Embassy. 
 

5.      The Lord Mayor to report that, on Thursday 25th 
May, she attended the funeral of Flt Sgt Peter 
Brown at St Clement Danes Church and the St 
Marylebone Changing Lives celebration at St 
Marylebone Parish Church. 
  

6.      The Lord Mayor to report that, on Wednesday 31st 
May, she attended lunch with Mr Kelly Hsieh, 
Representative to the United Kingdom for Taiwan 
at the Corinthia Hotel and the Chinese Information 
and Advice Centre’s Fundraising Night at 
Kensington Palace. 

  

  
 



 
 

 

3

7.      The Lord Mayor to report that, on Thursday 1st 
June, she attended the official opening of the 
Onion Garden on Spenser Street. 

  
8.      The Lord Mayor to report that, on Wednesday 7th 

June, she attended the Italian National Day 
reception at the Italian Embassy. 

  
9.      The Lord Mayor to report that, on Friday 9th June, 

she attended the St Barnabas Day celebrations at 
St Barnabas CofE Primary School. 

  
10.  The Lord Mayor to report that, on Saturday 10th 

June, she attended the American School in 
London’s Commencement Exercises and 
Reception at Central Hall. 

  
11.  The Lord Mayor to report that, on Thursday 15th 

June, she attended the Residents’ Society of 
Mayfair and St James’s Summer Party at Mount 
Street Gardens. 

  
12.  The Lord Mayor to report that, on Saturday 17th 

June, she attended the Trooping of the Colour on 
Horse Guards and the KindWinter Charity 
Fundraiser on MV Zeeland, Cadogan Pier. 

  
13.  The Lord Mayor to report that, on Sunday 18th 

June, she attended West End Live in Trafalgar 
Square. 

  

5.   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 

 

6.   STATEMENT ON URGENT MATTERS  

 With the approval of the Chair of the meeting, the Leader of the 
Council may make a statement on an urgent matter and the Leader 
of the Opposition will have an equivalent right of reply. 
 

 

7.   COUNCILLOR PRESENTED PETITIONS OR DEPUTATIONS, IF 
ANY 
 

 

8.   PUBLIC PARTICIPATION  

 The Lord Mayor will invite members of the public who have been 
chosen to present their question or petition.  After which the relevant 

 



 
 

 

4

Cabinet Member or Committee Chair will respond. 
 

9.   QUESTIONS  

 The Lord Mayor will call Members who have indicated that they wish 
to ask a question after the Leader of the Opposition has asked her 
questions 
 

 

10.   COUNCILLOR ISSUE  

 Councillor Jessica Toale – ‘Preserving the Character of the West 
End’ 
 

 

11.   PARTY BUSINESS  

 To consider any items for debate. 
  

 

12.   REPORT OF THE GENERAL PURPOSES COMMITTEE: 
MEMBER ALLOWANCE SCHEME 2023-2024: AMENDMENT 

(To Follow) 

 To receive, consider and debate, if chosen, the following 
report which contains recommendations to the Council for 
approval and adoption. 
 

 

13.   NOTICES OF MOTION  

 
(a) Majority Party Motion – Fairer Westminster 

To be moved by Councillor Ellie Ormsby and seconded by 
Councillor James Small-Edwards. 

  
This Council notes that: 
       This administration was elected with a commitment to build a 

Fairer Westminster. Creating a more equitable economy and 
society in Westminster, which puts our residents and 
communities first. It notes the principles and plans set out in 
the 2023/24 Fairer Westminster Delivery Plan. 

       The Council has recently become a signatory to the Unison 
Ethical Care Charter, making a commitment to improving 
protections for care workers and improving outcomes for 
service users. It has also created a unique Dirty Money 
Charter with the New West End Company (NWEC), the Heart 
of London Business Alliance (HOLBA), the Fair Tax 
Foundation and others to call for national change to tackle 
economic crime and corruption, whilst doing what we can here 
in Westminster. 

       Westminster is proud of its vibrancy and diversity, and its 
history of welcoming refugees and displaced people from 

 



 
 

 

5

around the world fleeing conflict, climate change, inequality, 
discrimination and violence. On the latest published figures, 
Westminster is home to 763 people who are here on the 
Homes for Ukraine scheme, 997 asylum seekers of which 851 
are in Home Office Contingency hotels, 7 refugee families 
resettled through the UK Resettlement and Afghan 
Resettlement pledge, and we are responsible for 54 
unaccompanied asylum-seeking children and 212 former 
unaccompanied asylum-seeking children care leavers. 

       Council of Sanctuary designation is awarded by the City of 
Sanctuary Local Authority Network to institutions that are 
welcoming to those fleeing violence and persecution in their 
own countries, and protecting the rights of all migrants, 
asylum-seekers and refugees. There are 33 members in total 
(10 in London, including recently in Camden where this 
designation was adopted unanimously) and 11 that have 
achieved the full award (1 in London). 

       Councils can have a significant impact on their local area by 
promoting better mental health. Westminster takes its 
responsibility to care for its residents’ mental health seriously 
and recognises the impact it can have. 

       Councillors represent their community and where possible 
Councillors, as a whole, should reflect the diversity of their 
community, particularly those with protected characteristics 
(age, disability, gender reassignment, marriage and civil 
partnership, pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, 
sex, sexual orientation). The Co-operative Party’s Diverse 
Councils Declaration sets out ideas for increasing diversity in 
local government by suggesting ways to remove barriers 
standing in the way of a more diverse and inclusive 
democracy. 
  

This Council believes that: 
       Our vision for a Fairer Westminster must extend to the most 

vulnerable in the borough, including our refugee, asylum 
seeking and migrant communities. 
o   We have a duty of care towards children, and vulnerable 

and trafficked adults in our borough. 
o   We must continue to go above and beyond business as 

usual to support migrant communities. The journey to 
become a Council of Sanctuary will solidify this 
commitment. 

       As a local authority we have a crucial role to play in improving 
the mental health of everyone in our community and tackling 
some of the widest and most entrenched inequalities in mental 
health. 
o   Mental health should be a priority across all the local 

authority’s areas of responsibility. 



 
 

 

6

o   All councillors, whether members of the Cabinet or 
Scrutiny, and in our community and casework roles, can 
play a positive role in championing mental health on an 
individual and strategic basis. 

       We should seek to take proactive steps to ensure our 
councillors are representative of the diverse communities they 
serve. A more representative democracy is a more inclusive 
democracy, which enables increased participation and more-
informed decision-making. 
  

This Council resolves to: 
       Launch the journey to become a Council of Sanctuary by 

joining City of Sanctuary’s local authority network and 
demonstrate its values of ‘Inclusive, Openness, Participation, 
Inspire, and Integrity’. 
o   Continue to welcome and support refugees and migrants 

in the borough and stand in solidarity with them. 
o   Challenge anti-migrant sentiment where we find it. 
o   Work to ensure that Central Government provides 

adequate resources to local government to properly 
support refugees and displaced people in our City 
including funding for care, advice, housing and skills and 
employment support. 

o   Find more opportunities across the Council to celebrate 
our refugee and migrant communities, tell their stories, 
and promote their voices. 

o   Work with local community, voluntary sector, health, and 
education partners, including those with lived experience, 
to shape Westminster’s borough of sanctuary ambition. 

       Sign the Local Authorities’ Mental Health Challenge run by 
Centre for Mental Health. 
o   Continue to support the Mental Health Member Champion 
    in their role. 
o   Support positive mental health in our community, including 
    in local schools, neighbourhoods and workplaces. 
o   Work to reduce inequalities in mental health in our 
    community. 
o   Work with local partners to offer effective support for people 
    with mental health needs. 
o   Tackle discrimination on the grounds of mental health in 
    our community. 
o   Proactively listen to people of all ages and backgrounds 
    about what they need for better mental health. 

       Commit to being a Diverse Council: 
o   Provide a clear public commitment to improving diversity in 
   democracy. 
o   Demonstrate an open and welcoming culture to all, 
    promoting the highest standards of behaviour and conduct. 



 
 

 

7

o   Recommend a Diverse Council Action Plan to political 
    groups for adoption ahead of the next local elections. 
o   Work towards the standards for member support and 
    development as set out in the LGA Councillor Development 
    Charter and Charter Plus. 
o   Demonstrate a commitment to a duty of care for councillors 
    by: 

  Providing access to counselling services for all  
   councillors; 
  Having regard for the safety and wellbeing of  
   councillors whenever they are performing their role  
   as councillors; and 
  Taking a zero-tolerance approach to bullying and  
   harassment of members including through social  
   networks. 

o   Provide flexibility in Council business by regularly reviewing 
    and staggering meeting times where appropriate and  

         feasible. 
o   Ensure that all members are able to take up the support to 
    which they are entitled, particularly any reimbursement for  
    costs of care, so the role of member is not limited to those    
    who can afford it or those reliant on the support of others to  
    fulfil their duties. 
o   Review the Council’s parental leave policy setting out 
    members’ entitlement to maternity, paternity, shared 
    parental and adoption leave and relevant allowances to 
    ensure it as inclusive and fair as possible. 

       Support the delivery of our commitments under Westminster’s 
Dirty Money and the Unison Ethical Care Charter. 
  
  
  

(b) Opposition Party Motion – Restoring the 75% cut of new 
build intermediate housing for Key Workers 

  
To be moved by Councillor David Harvey and seconded by 
Councillor Robert Rigby. 
  
This Council deplores the cut of up to 75% in new build 
intermediate housing aimed at key workers since this 
Administration took charge and seeks for the Cabinet to reinstate 
the key worker homes to the build programme. 
  
We want a "city for all" that builds not just homes but communities. 
That has to include our hard-pressed key workers who will seldom 
qualify for social rent housing or otherwise be able to afford to live 
in Westminster. Without our key workers living here, this is not a 
fairer Westminster. 



 
 

 

8

 
64 Victoria Street 
London, SW1E 6QP 
20 June 2023 
 

 

 Chief Executive 
 

 
 



 
1 

 

CITY OF WESTMINSTER 
 

MINUTES OF PROCEEDINGS 
 

At the Meeting of the Council of the City of Westminster held at 7.00 pm on 
Wednesday 17th May, 2023 at Westminster Council House, 97-113 Marylebone 

Road, London, NW1 5PT. 
 
 

PRESENT 
 

Councillor Paul Fisher, and upon election as Lord Mayor,  
Councillor Patricia McAllister 

 
 

COUNCILLORS 
 
Concia Albert  
Gillian Arrindell  
Barbara Arzymanow  
Geoff Barraclough  
Liza Begum 
David Boothroyd 
Nafsika Butler-Thalassis  
Ruth Bush 
Melvyn Caplan  
Maggie Carman  
Md Shamsed Chowdhury  
Lorraine Dean  
Tony Devenish  
Paul Dimoldenberg  
Laila Cunningham  
Robert Eagleton  
Ed Pitt Ford  
Jim Glen  
David Harvey  
Sara Hassan 
Elizabeth Hitchcock  
Adam Hug  
Louise Hyams  
Ryan Jude 
Aicha Less  
 

Iman Less 
Patrick Lilley  
Patricia McAllister  
Alan Mendoza  
Tim Mitchell  
Matt Noble  
Ellie Ormsby  
Ralu Oteh-Osoka  
Angela Piddock 
Robert Rigby  
Rachael Robathan  
Tim Roca  
Ian Rowley  
Cara Sanquest  
Caroline Sargent  
Karen Scarborough  
Mark Shearer  
Selina Short  
James Small-Edwards  
Judith Southern  
Max Sullivan  
Paul Swaddle  
Jessica Toale  
Aziz Toki  
Jacqui Wilkinson 
Jason Williams 
 

APOLOGIES: Councillors Amanda Langford and Hamza Taouzzale  
 
1 ELECTION OF CHAIR 
 
1.1  Proposed by Councillor Adam Hug and seconded by Councillor Ellie Ormsby 

that Councillor Paul Fisher be elected Chair of Full Council. 
 

Page 9

Agenda Item 3



 
2 

 

1.2  Upon a show of hands, the Chief Executive declared that Councillor Paul 
Fisher had been elected Chair.  

 
RESOLVED: That Councillor Paul Fisher be elected Chair of Full Council. 
 
 

2 ELECTION OF LORD MAYOR 
 
2.1  Proposed by Councillor Paul Dimoldenberg and seconded by Councillor Ruth 

Bush that Councillor Patricia McAllister be elected Lord Mayor of Westminster 
for the ensuing year.  

 
2.2  Upon a show of hands, the Chair of the meeting, Cllr Paul Fisher declared 

that Councillor Patricia McAllister had been elected Lord Mayor.  
 

RESOLVED: That Councillor Patricia McAllister be elected Lord Mayor of 
Westminster for the ensuing year.  
 
Councillor Patricia McAllister thereupon made and signed the Declaration of 
Acceptance of Office of Lord Mayor and of the Office of Deputy High Steward 
of Westminster. Having done so, she took the Chair and thanked the Council 
for her election and reported that Ellis McAllister and Kevin Murphy would be 
her Consorts. 

 
 
3 MINUTES 
 
3.1  RESOLVED: That the minutes of the Council meeting held on 8 March 2023 

were, with the assent of the Members present, signed by the Lord Mayor as a 
true record. 

 
 
4 LORD MAYOR'S COMMUNICATIONS 
 
4.1 The Lord Mayor announced that she had appointed Rev’d Dr Michael 

Jarmulowicz as her Chaplain. The Chaplain then led the Council in a moment 
of reflection. 

 
 
5 PRESENTATION OF PAST LORD MAYOR'S BADGE AND VOTE OF 

THANKS 
 
5.1 The Lord Mayor was due to present the Past Lord Mayor’s Badge and Vote of 

Thanks to Cllr Taouzzale and his Consorts.  However, it was explained that 
due to a family bereavement Cllr Taouzzale was unable to be present, the 
Lord Mayor passed on the Council’s best wishes to him and his family and 
confirmed that the presentation would be moved to a future Council meeting.  

 
 
 

Page 10



 
3 

 

6 REPORT FOR FULL COUNCIL: KEY DECISIONS - USE OF SPECIAL 
URGENCY PROCEDURE 2022/23 

6.1 The report was noted. 
 
 
7 CONSTITUTIONAL MATTERS 
 
7.1  The report of the Director of Law was submitted.  
 
7.2  The Lord Mayor put the recommendations set out in the report to the vote and 

on a show of hands declared these to be AGREED.  
 

RESOLVED:  
 
1.  That the Council determined the allocation of places on the standing 

committees and noted the names of the Members appointed to them, 
following notification by the respective Party Whips, as detailed in 
Appendix A of the report. 

 
2.  That the Council confirmed the proportional division of seats on the 

Standing Committees as set out below: 
 
  

Committee  Members  
  Total  Labour  Conservative  

Audit and Performance Committee  4  3  1  
General Purposes Committee  4  3  1  
Westminster Scrutiny Commission  7  4  3  
Communities, City Management and 
Air Quality P&S  7  4  3  

Children & Adults, Public Health & 
Voluntary Sector P&S  7  4  3  

Finance, Planning and Economic 
Development P&S  7  4  3  

Climate Action, Housing and 
Regeneration P&S  7  4  3  

Standards Committee  5  3  2  
Pensions Fund Committee  4  3  1  
Planning & City Development 
Committee  14  8  6  

Licensing Committee  15  8  7  
Total  81  48  33  

Target number (and variance)    47 (+1)  34 (-1)  
 

  

Page 11



 
4 

 

 
The Meeting ended at 7.50pm 
 
 
 
 
 
CHAIRMAN:   DATE  

 
 

Page 12


	Agenda
	3 Minutes

